
    James F. Fahey, Jr. 

  Mayor 

AGENDA 
Village of Corrales Governing Body 

April 9, 2024, 6:30pm 

This will be an in-person meeting at the Village of Corrales Council Chambers, 4324 Corrales Road, Corrales, 
NM 87048, which the public is allowed to attend. 

Zoom access is available and participants are encouraged to join before 6:35 p.m.  
To join the Zoom meeting call: 1-669-900-6833, or go to Zoom.com and click “Join a Meeting.” 

Meeting ID: 815 7747 7540  Passcode: 892121 
For any questions regarding the meeting, please call the Village Clerk, Melanie Romero, at 505-897-0502  

A. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

B. GOVERNING BODY PRESENT

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

D. PRESENTATIONS
1. Proclamation 24-01 reading and approval
2. Update from Intel – Frank Gallegos
3. Commercial kitchen – Jon Young

E. REPORTS:
1. Administrator’s Report

F. CORRALEÑOS FORUM:  This section is for informational purposes only, not for discussion and
debate, to inform the governing body of an issue or concern that would not be addressed on the agenda
during the business session.  There is a 3-minute time limit, additional time can only be granted by the
presiding officer.

There will be a sign-up sheet at the door for participants who would like to speak. Anyone wishing
to speak must sign in before the meeting begins at 6:30 pm. To speak via Zoom, call the Village
Clerk, Melanie Romero, at 505-897-0502 no later than 12:00 pm on Tuesday, April 9, 2024.

G. COUNCILORS FORUM:   This section is for informational purposes only, not for discussion and
debate, to inform the Governing Body of an issue or concern that would not be addressed on the agenda
during the business session.

H. CONSENT AGENDA
1. Approval of Minutes for March 26, 2024, Regular Council Meeting
2. Approval of Resolution 24-16, Sponsoring the 29th Annual July 4th Parade

Bill Woldman 
Councilor 

Stuart Murray 
Councilor 

Zachary Burkett 
Councilor 

Rick Miera 
Councilor 

Mel Knight 
Councilor 

John P. Alsobrook, II 
Councilor 

1 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81577477540?pwd=YmdyOFFMbzBLM1p3TFZjWFlTKzQ1dz09


I. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

J. NEW BUSINESS
1. Consideration, Action, and Approval of Resolution 24-17, Directing the Publication of a Notice Of

Meeting and Intent to Consider Adoption of Ordinance 24-05 Regarding Compliance with Article
IX of the New Mexico Constitution

2. Consideration, Action, and Approval of Ordinance 24-03 Zone Map Amendment
3. Discussion of changes to ordinance 18-164 (C)(2)(c) as recommended by the Planning and Zoning

Commission
4. Discussion of ICIP projects

K. ANNOUNCEMENTS/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:
1. Liquor License Hearing for Mulas 4/23
2. Arbor Day Proclamation 4/23
3. Approval of Ordinance 24-04 regarding Bond Sale 4/23
4. Resolution for traffic study on La Entrada 4/23
5. Budget Work Study Meeting – 5/7 2 PM 

L. ADJOURNMENT

A COPY OF THE AGENDA MAY BE OBTAINED ON THE WEBSITE: www.corrales-nm.org by clicking on 
“I’m Looking For & Agendas/Minutes” 
 

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any other 
form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact the Village Clerk at the Village 
Offices located at 4324 Corrales Road, at least five (5) days prior to the meeting or as soon as possible. The Council Chambers 
are now equipped with a hearing-aid accessible loop hearing system. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be 
provided in various accessible formats. Please contact the Village Clerk at 897-0502, or by e-mail at mromero@corrales-nm.org 
if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed. 

NEXT REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING: April 23, 2024, at 6:30 pm  

I certify that notice of the Public Meeting has been given in compliance with the Open Meetings Act, Section 
10-15-1 through 10-15-4 NMSA 1978 and the Open Meetings Resolution 23-75. I certify that this agenda was
posted on: April 5, 2024.

Melanie L. Romero, Village Clerk

2 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024

http://www.corrales-nm.org/
mailto:mromero@corrales-nm.org


 
Annabella Beck Day 
    April 19th, 2024 

WHEREAS, Annabella Beck has been selected as the recipient of the “APS Foundation Selfless 
Senior Award” for Cibola High School for 2024 for her dedication to the betterment of the citizens in 
the Village of Corrales and surrounding communities; and 

WHEREAS Annabella is dedicated to helping others in her community and surrounding communities 
by volunteering her time and energy to making the world around her a better place for all; and 

WHEREAS Annabella has volunteered for numerous community events through Key Club and the 
National Honor Society benefiting the citizens of the Village of Corrales and surrounding communities 
helping others in need without compensation or praise; and 

WHEREAS Annabella volunteers her time socializing cats for adoption with the Companion Animal 
Rescue and Medical Assistance (CARMA) organization which is located in the Village of Corrales; 
and 

WHEREAS Annabella is the intern for Councilor Rick Miera and attends regular council meetings in 
the pursuit of knowledge about local government in the community where she lives; and 

WHEREAS Annabella is an intern for Alex Piland from the Democratic Party of Sandoval County 
and is learning about the Democratic party and its policies and beliefs with the hope to start a Sandoval 
County chapter of the Young Democratic Party; and 

WHEREAS Annabella has been selected as the recipient of the “Distribution des Prix Award” which 
honors the finest students of French in Albuquerque and the greater metropolitan region; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, James F. Fahey, Jr., Mayor of the Village of Corrales, Sandoval County, 
State of New Mexico, proclaim April 19th, 2024 as Annabella Beck Day in the Village of Corrales, and 
call upon the people of the Village of Corrales to honor Annabella Beck and the positive impact she 
has had on our community in the hope that others will follow by her example. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Governing Body of the Village of Corrales, New 
Mexico, this 9th day of April 2024. 

APPROVED: 

______________________________
_____  James F. Fahey, Jr., Mayor  

ATTEST: 

_________________________________  
Melanie L. Romero, Village Clerk 

Village of Corrales 
Proclamation 24-01

3 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



4 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



Consent agenda 
• Draft Minutes for March 26, 2024 Regular Meeting … Pg 6 
• Resolution 24-16 …………………………..…………. Pg 10 

5 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



    James F. Fahey, Jr. 

  Mayor 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Village of Corrales Governing Body 

March 26, 2024, 6:30pm 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Meeting called to order at 6:30 PM

Timestamps: 00:00:00 – 00:00:31

B. GOVERNING BODY PRESENT
Present for tonight’s meeting were Mayor James F. Fahey, Jr; Councilor Rick Miera; Councilor Bill
Woldman; Councilor Mel Knight; Councilor John P. Alsobrook, II; Councilor Zachary Burkett; and
Councilor Stuart Murray

Timestamps: 00:00:31 – 00:00:48

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Motion: Approve Agenda Action: Approve Moved by: Councilor Zachary Burkett Seconded by:
Councilor Bill Woldman Vote: Motion carried as amended by unanimous voice vote

Motion: Amend Agenda by removing item number two of new business Moved by: Councilor Zachary
Burkett Seconded by: Councilor Bill Woldman Vote: Councilor Stuart Murray: aye; Councilor Zachary
Burkett: aye; Councilor John P. Alsobrook II: aye; Councilor Mel Knight: aye; Councilor Bill
Woldman: aye; Councilor Rick Miera: aye. Motion carried with unanimous vote.

Timestamps: 00:00:48 – 00:04:14

D. PRESENTATIONS
1. Audit presentation – Josh Trujillo, SJT Group LLC

The Village received a clean audit, meaning its financial statements are materially correct. There were
two findings in the audit, and the auditor stated there were no significant difficulties in completing the
audit.

Timestamps: 00:04:14 – 00:13:20 

E. REPORTS:
1. Administrator’s Report

 Deputy Fire Chief Tanya Lattin reported there has been an uptick of Covid cases in the Village, and
New Mexico is still very high for influenza-like viruses.

Fire Chief Anthony Martinez gave an update to the council on the many projects for the Corrales fire 
line, including work on Loma Larga to bring water to the Academy Road area, and completion of the 

Bill Woldman 
Councilor 

Stuart Murray 
Councilor 

Zachary Burkett 
Councilor 

Rick Miera 
Councilor 

Mel Knight 
Councilor 

John P. Alsobrook, II 
Councilor 

6 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024

https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=4NfJAhI_jBqgi1o_
https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=4NfJAhI_jBqgi1o_&t=31
https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=1wJw2JfAEtsQIqYQ&t=48
https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=DIu4xmt7wfQ6woHH&t=254


line along Old Church Road, which will connect Loma Larga to the main fire station system. The 
department does not have enough funds yet for the Angel Hill water tower, but they are looking for 
ways to complete parts of the project.  

Village Clerk Melanie Romero informed the council that the animal services building is waiting for an 
electrical hookup by PNM, then final inspections can be completed. Project completion is still estimated 
to be the end of April. 

Administrator Ron Curry told the council his job to is bring the best information possible to the council, 
and then invited Village Attorney Randy Autio to give council information regarding the recent decision 
regarding Village bond sales. Attorney Autio said there had been confusion during that vote because 
information had been presented to council during a closed session regarding a property interested in 
obtaining a farmland preservation easement. He wanted to make sure everyone understood the decision 
to sell a bond is based solely on the Village’s bonding capacity. There are no specific projects or 
purchases tied to the recent approval to sell the bond for farmland preservation and open space. There is 
still a process that must be followed by the farmland preservation and agricultural commission to 
identify the properties that qualify for the program. 

Timestamps: 00:13:20 – 00:43:58 

F. CORRALEÑOS FORUM:  This section is for informational purposes only, not for discussion and 
debate, to inform the governing body of an issue or concern that would not be addressed on the agenda 
during the business session.  There is a 3-minute time limit, additional time can only be granted by the 
presiding officer.   

 
Stori White and Katilin Robinson, both members of the Corrales Equestrian Advisory Commission, 
invite the community to come out to the Rides, Strides, and Giddyup Fair, which will take place on 
April 28th from 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. as part of ¡Viva Corrales! Events will be held at the Rec Center. 
 
State Representative Kathleen Cates said she supports a commercial kitchen in Corrales and would be 
happy to assist with funding in the future if it is chosen as a priority project for capital outlay funding. 
She also said she is happy to answer any questions about the most recent legislative session if residents 
have any concerns. 
 
The Village Clerk read a statement emailed by Rick Thaler regarding speeding issues in the Village. 
 
Timestamps: 00:43:58 – 00:50:11 
 

G. COUNCILORS FORUM:   This section is for informational purposes only, not for discussion and 
debate, to inform the Governing Body of an issue or concern that would not be addressed on the agenda 
during the business session. 

 
Councilor Mel Knight gave an update on the Rio Metro Transportation board meeting she recently 
attended.  
 
Councilor Stuart Murray gave an update on the Metropolitan Planning Board meeting he recently 
attended. He also mentioned he had submitted a resolution for a traffic study on La Entrada that he 
hopes will be heard by the council at an upcoming meeting. 
 
Timestamps: 00:50:11 – 00:55:24 

 
 
 

7 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024

https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=4_jM8Lq6UWDTQLOt&t=800
https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=biUAQ_MtIEGwxMoQ&t=2638
https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=biUAQ_MtIEGwxMoQ&t=2638
https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=KZAhH2bURIemsvfu&t=3011


 
H. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approval of Minutes for March 12, 2024, Regular Council Meeting 
2. Approval of Event Application for Music in Corrales – Concert in the Park 
3. Approval of Event Application for Corrales Garden Tour 
4. Approval of Event Application for ASK Academy Dance 

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda Action:  Approve Moved by: Councilor Bill Woldman Seconded 
by: Councilor Stuart Murray Vote: Motion carried with a unanimous voice vote. 
 
Timestamps: 00:55:24 – 00:56:36 

 
I. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 

No items were removed from the consent agenda 

J. NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consideration, Action, and Approval of Resolution 24-14, Acceptance and Approval of FY2023 

Audit 
Motion: Approve Resolution 24-14 Action: Approve Moved by: Councilor Rick Miera Seconded by: 
Councilor Mel Knight Vote: Councilor Rick Miera: aye; Councilor Bill Woldman: aye; Councilor Mel 
Knight: aye; Councilor John P. Alsobrook II: aye; Councilor Zachary Burkett: aye; Councilor Stuart 
Murray: aye. Motion carried with a unanimous vote. 

Timestamps: 00:56:36 – 00:57:05 

2. Possible Reconsideration of Direction to Stifel Public Finance to Begin Preparation of Bond Sale 
Documents Pursuant to Rule 2.7 D of the Rules of Procedure for the Governing Body 

This item was removed from the agenda by a motion during approval of the agenda. 

3. Consideration, Action, and Approval of Resolution 24-15 Publish and Post Approval for Ordinance 
24-04, Bond Sale Ordinance 

Motion: Approve Resolution 24-15 Moved by: Councilor Zachary Burkett Seconded by: Councilor 
John P. Alsobrook II Vote: Councilor Stuart Murray: aye; Councilor Zachary Burkett: aye; Councilor 
John P. Alsobrook II: aye; Councilor Mel Knight: aye; Councilor Bill Woldman: aye; Councilor Rick 
Miera: aye. Motion carried with a unanimous vote. 

Timestamps: 00:57:05 – 00:59:50 

4. Discussion of Changes to Chapter 20, Article II of Village Code Regarding Alarm Permits 
These changes are requested due to the sections no longer being relevant to the Village’s needs.  

  

 Timestamps: 00:59:50 – 01:03:23 

5. Discussion of Changes to Chapter 10 of Village Code Regarding Businesses 
These changes are requested to match language used on the New Mexico Secretary of State’s 
website, clean up areas no longer relevant, and to address door-to-door sales in the Village. 

 

 Timestamps: 01:03:23 – 01:19:02 

K. ANNOUNCEMENTS/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 
1. Commercial Kitchen Presentation 4/9 

2. Presentation from Intel 4/9 

3. Approval of Ordinance 24-03, Zone Map Amendment 4/9 

4. Liquor License Hearing for Mulas 4/23 
8 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024

https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=PxSmzicQ6k8s36uo&t=3324
https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=BprmL4DeBsVO574M&t=3396
https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=Y2q1InkwVYZLqinf&t=3425
https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=ZnQHKQR9q_xJL6fE&t=3590
https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=6ThdgJnzX5fynIJW&t=3803


5. Arbor Day Proclamation 4/23

Timestamps: 01:19:02  - 01:20:47

L. ADJOURNMENT
Meeting adjourned at: 7:51 PM

Timestamps: 01:20:47 – 01:20:54 

A COPY OF THE MINUTES MAY BE OBTAINED ON THE WEBSITE: www.corrales-nm.org by 
clicking on “I’m Looking For & Agendas/Minutes” 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of April 2024 

     VILLAGE OF CORRALES: 

      _________________________  
James F. Fahey, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
Melanie L. Romero, Village Clerk 
(SEAL) 

9 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024

https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=AHrpIoirUn9ffLhJ&t=4742
https://youtu.be/R5XDLxczDOA?si=AHrpIoirUn9ffLhJ&t=4847
http://www.corrales-nm.org/


VILLAGE OF CORRALES 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-16 

A RESOLUTION SPONSORING, WITH CORRALES MAINSTREET, 
INC., THE 29th ANNUAL FOURTH OF JULY PARADE.  

WHEREAS, for the past twenty-nine years, Corrales has had a parade on the Fourth of July, 
organized by local residents; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body and Village Staff understand the importance and history of the 
4th of July Parade; and 

WHEREAS, the sponsors for the event will be Corrales MainStreet, Inc. and volunteer citizens 
and employees for the Village of Corrales; and 

WHEREAS, the parade will begin at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, July 4th, 2024 and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Village of Corrales is sponsoring the 29th 
Annual Fourth of July Parade. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Governing Body of the Village of Corrales hereby 
gives its approval to commence with planning and execution of the 4th of July Parade. 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND SIGNED this 9th day of April 2024. 

VILLAGE OF CORRALES 

___________________________________
James F. Fahey, Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Melanie L. Romero, Village Clerk 

(SEAL) 

10 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



New Business 

• Resolution 24-17 …………………… Pg 12 
• Ordinance 24-03  …………………… Pg 17 
• Suggested changes from P&Z ……… Pg 18 
• ICIP Projects info ……………………Pg 21 

11 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



VILLAGE OF CORRALES 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-17 

DIRECTING THE PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF MEETING AND INTENT TO 
CONSIDER ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 24-05 AN ORDINANCE REGARDING 
COMPLIANCE WITH ARTICLE IX OF THE NEW MEXICO CONSTITUTION 

WHEREAS, the Village Council of the Village of Corrales (the “Governing Body”) met 
upon notice of meeting duly published, in the Village Council Chambers (4324 Corrales 
Road, Corrales, NM 87048), on April 9th, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body has considered a first reading of Ordinance 24-05 at a duly 
called meeting on April 9th, 2024, and intends to consider a second reading and final approval 
of the Amendments at a duly called regular meeting on May 14th , 2024, at 6:30 p.m.; and 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 3-17-3 (1973) provides that “[n]otice by publication of the 
title and subject matter of any ordinance proposed for adoption by the governing body of any 
municipality must take place at least two weeks prior to consideration of final action upon the 
ordinance in open session of the governing body ... [and] [n]otice of the proposed ordinance 
shall be published one time as a legal advertisement in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
municipality . . . [and] [c]opies of a proposed ordinance shall be available to interested persons 
during normal and regular business hours of the municipal clerk upon request and payment of a 
reasonable charge beginning with the date of publication and continuing to the date of 
consideration by the municipality’s elected commission.” 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL, THE 
GOVERNING BODY OF THE VILLAGE OF CORRALES, NEW MEXICO: 

Section 1. All action not inconsistent with this resolution (the “Resolution”) 
heretofore taken by the Governing Body of the Governmental Unit, and the officers, 
employees, and agents of the Governing Body, directed toward the authorization of this 
Resolution be, and the same is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. 

Section 2. The publication, in accordance with Section 3-17-3, in The 
Albuquerque Journal, a newspaper of general circulation within the Village, or any other 
newspaper of general circulation within the Village in which such publication is required 
by law or ordinance, of the following notice at least two weeks prior to the meeting at 
which the Governing Body of the Village will consider the Ordinance, is hereby 
authorized. 

12 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



[Form of Notice] 
 

Village of Corrales, New Mexico 
Notice of Meeting and Intent to Consider Adoption of Ordinance 

 
The Village Council of the Village of Corrales, New Mexico, hereby gives notice of a 

Regular Village Council meeting for Tuesday, May 14, 2024, at 6:30 PM. This will be an in-
person meeting located at 4324 Corrales Road, Corrales, NM 87048 with Zoom participation 
available, meeting ID: 822 2904 0178, passcode: 100220. At such meeting, the Village 
Council will hold a public hearing concerning, and will consider for adoption, the proposed 
ordinance (the “Ordinance”) described below. Complete copies of the proposed Ordinance are 
available for public inspection during the normal and regular business hours of the Village 
Clerk (mromero@corrales-nm.org), located at 4324 Corrales Road, in Corrales, New Mexico 
87048. 

 
The title (subject to amendment or substitution) of the proposed Ordinance is: 

VILLAGE OF CORRALES 
ORDINANCE NO. 24-05 

 
AN ORDINANCE REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH ARTICLE IX OF THE NEW 
MEXICO CONSTITUTION 

 
A general summary of the subject matter of the Ordinance is contained in its title. 

This Notice constitutes compliance with NMSA 1978, Section 3-17-3 (1973). 
 

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF 
THE VILLAGE OF CORRALES, NEW MEXICO 

 
James F. Fahey, Jr, MD, Mayor 

 
By:  /s/ Melanie 

Romero  
Melanie Romero, 

Village Clerk 
[End of Form of Notice] 

 
Section 3. The Ordinance shall be filed with the Village Clerk and shall be 

considered by the Village Council at a regular meeting of the Village Council on May 14, 
2024, at 6:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard in the Village Council 
Chambers (4324 Corrales Road, Corrales, NM 87048). 

 
Section 4. If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall 

for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such 
section, paragraph, clause, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of 
this Resolution. 

 

13 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



Section 5. All acts, orders and resolutions of the Village Council, and parts 
thereof, inconsistent with this Resolution be, and the same hereby are, repealed to the 
extent only of such inconsistency. This repealer shall not be construed to revive any act, 
order or resolution, or part thereof, heretofore repealed. 

 
Section 6. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 9th day of April, 2024. 

 
VILLAGE OF CORRALES, NEW MEXICO 

 
        

James F. Fahey, Jr., MD, Mayor  
 
 

Rick Miera, Councilor, District 1 
 
 

Bill Woldman, Councilor, District 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      ___________________________________ 
Mel Knight, Councilor, District 3 

 
 

John P. Alsobrook, II, Councilor, District 4 
 
 

Zachary Burkett, Councilor, District 5 
 
 

Stuart Murray, Councilor, District 6 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
Melanie L. Romero 
Village Clerk 

 

14 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



1 

VILLAGE OF CORRALES 

ORDINANCE NO. 24-05 

AN ORDINANCE REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH ARTICLE IX OF THE NEW 
MEXICO CONSTITUTION 

WHEREAS, a question has arisen regarding acts that may have contravened the provisions of 
Article IX of the New Mexico Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, the Village Governing Body wishes to refine the rules regarding compliance with 
said provision; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Village Council, the governing body of the 
Village of Corrales, that:  

Section 1.  Enactment of new Section 2-85. 

A new Section 2-85, entitled “Financial Compliance,” is hereby enacted, as part of Chapter 2, 
Article III, of the Corrales Village Code, following Section 2-84 thereof, to read as follows: 

Section 2-85. - Financial Compliance 
No appointed or elected official shall, alone or in concert with any other 

person, take any act or action which shall, either alone or in conjunction with any 
other action or event, cause the Village to violate any provision of Article IX of 
the New Mexico Constitution. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
Village funds or assets shall not be expended, nor its credit be loaned or pledged, 
directly or indirectly, to any private person, association, enterprise, or public or 
private corporation unless permitted under the anti-donation clause of the New 
Mexico Constitution, Article IX, Section 14. 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE:  Should any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 
Ordinance be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the 
remaining provisions of this Ordinance.  The Governing Body of the Village of Corrales hereby 
declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
word or phrase thereof irrespective of any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, 
words or phrases being declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid. 

COMPILING CLAUSE:  This Ordinance shall be incorporated in and compiled as a part of the 
Code of Ordinances of the Village of Corrales, as provided herein.  

15 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



 

2 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE AND PUBLICATION:  This Ordinance shall become effective and be in 
full force and effect from and after its passage, publication and posting, according to law. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Body of the Village of Corrales, 
New Mexico, this 14th day of May 2024. 
 
       APPROVED: 

 
 
       ________________________________ 
       James F. Fahey, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Melanie L. Romero, Village Clerk  

 

16 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



VILLAGE OF CORRALES 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO 

ORDINANCE NO. 24-03 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE RE-ZONING OF LANDS OF ADELA 
W. C DE BACA SUBDIVISION, TRACT 2 A, KNOWN AS 5093 CORRALES
ROAD, VILLAGE OF CORRALES, SANDOVAL COUNTY FROM A-1
(AGRICULTURAL AND RURAL RESIDENTIAL) TO C (NEIGHBORHOOD
COMMERCIAL)

WHEREAS, Zone Map Amendment (ZMA 24-01) was heard and approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission at the February 21, 2024 Regular Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Body of the Village of Corrales, New Mexico, 
that: 

Lands of Adela W. C de Baca Subdivision, Tract 2 A, 5093 Corrales Road and comprising 1.027 acres, shall be re-
zoned from A-1 Agricultural and Rural Residential to C – Neighborhood Commercial. 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE: Should any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance be held to be 
invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or 
provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. The Governing Body of the Village of 
Corrales hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
word or phrase thereof irrespective of any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, words or phrases 
being declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid. 

EFFECTIVE DATE AND PUBLICATION: This Ordinance shall become effective and be in full force and effect 
from and after its passage, publication and posting, according to law. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Body of the Village of 
Corrales, New Mexico, this 9th day of April 2024 

VILLAGE OF CORRALES 

______________________________ 
James Fahey, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________        
Melanie Romero, Village Clerk 

(SEAL) 

17 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



18 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



VILLAGE OF CORRALES 

DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 24-06 

AN ORDINANCE REVISING AND CLARIFYING SLOPE REQUIREMENTS AND ELIGIBILITY 
WITHIN ARTICLE V. TERRAINS AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT, SECTION 

18-164 GRADING PERMITS, (C) MINIMUM STANDARDS, (2) GRADING, (C).

WHEREAS, Village Code Section 18-164 (c) (2) (c) as currently written states: 

Natural slopes greater than fifteen (15%) shall remain undisturbed. A variance may be granted upon application 
for isolated occurrences such as arroyo crossings and other limited areas with a natural slope greater than fifteen 
percent (15%), where the disturbance does not exceed one thousand (1,000) square feet in total. If the applicant 
demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Village that strict enforcement of this provision would prohibit access to 
the lot or placement of utilities, the Commission may grant a variance from the terms of this subsection 18-164 
(c) (2) (c). The Commission may seek the advice of the Village Engineer when considering a request for Variance
under this subsection, but is not bound or limited by such advice. This variance provision shall apply solely to the
construction of streets, roadways, driveways, drainage ways, and utility placement and is not intended to permit
development on natural slopes exceeding fifteen percent (15%).

WHEREAS, As currently written, the section is wordy and ambiguous, and has been challenged. While it does 
state that slopes over 15% cannot be disturbed, it then implies an applicant can request any amount of disturbance 
with a Variance request rather than a maximum of 1,000 square feet of disturbance; 

WHEREAS, the word “development” as otherwise used and defined in Village Code can mean any manmade 
change to a lot, in this section “development” has a different specific meaning, which will be clarified with the 
suggested new language for the section. It means here that the Variance to Slope request cannot be used for 
placement of a dwelling unit or another structure. 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission requested that the rules for a Variance to Slope over 15% be 
simply and clearly stated, showing the specific requirements an applicant must meet to be granted one. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Village Council, the governing body of the Village of 
Corrales, that this Section 18-164 (c) (2) (c) shall now read as follows: 

(c) Natural slopes greater than fifteen percent (15%) shall remain undisturbed. The Commission may grant a
variance from this subsection 18-164 (c) (2) (c) if all of the following requirements are met:

i. The disturbance does not exceed 1,000 square feet in total, and

ii. The applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Village that strict enforcement of this provision would
prohibit access to the lot or placement of utilities, and

iii. The variance does not apply to a dwelling unit or accessory structure pad site, but only for the purpose of
construction of streets, roadways, driveways, drainage ways or utility placement.

The Commission may seek the advice of the Village Engineer in considering a request for variance under this 
subsection but shall not be bound or limited by such advice. 

19 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



(Items (a-b) and (d-f) of this subsection remain as is.) 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE: Should any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance be held to be 
invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or 
provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. The Governing Body of the Village 
of Corrales hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, 
clause, word or phrase thereof irrespective of any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, words or 
phrases being declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid. 

COMPILING CLAUSE: This Ordinance shall be incorporated in and compiled as a part of the Code of 
Ordinances of the Village of Corrales, as provided herein. 

EFFECTIVE DATE AND PUBLICATION: This Ordinance shall become effective and be in full force and 
effect from and after its passage, publication and posting, according to law. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Body of the Village of Corrales, New Mexico, 
this XXth day of XXX 2024. 

VILLAGE OF CORRALES 

______________________________ 
James Fahey, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________ 
Melanie Romero, Village Clerk 

(SEAL) 

20 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



M
onday, A

pril 1, 2024
C

orrales/IC
IP

 29002

Infrastructure C
apital Im

provem
ent P

lan F
Y

 2025-2029

C
orrales

P
roject Sum

m
ary

T
otal

A
m

ount

F
unded

P
roject

N
ot Y

et

ID
Y

ear
R

ank
P

roject T
itle

C
ategory

to date
2025

2026
2027

2028
2029

C
ost

F
unded

P
hases?

10964
2025

001
Fire Suppression

Facilities - Fire Facilities
2,361,000

545,500
400,000

370,000
0

0
3,676,500

1,315,500
Y

es

40327
2025

002
A

ngel H
ill Fire Suppression/T

ow
er

Facilities - Fire Facilities
300,000

1,885,000
0

0
0

0
2,185,000

1,885,000
Y

es

37880
2025

003
Fire Substation #3

Facilities - Fire Facilities
1,000,000

300,000
0

0
0

0
1,300,000

300,000
Y

es

22302
2025

004
M

ulti-U
se E

ducation, C
om

m
unity and

A
rts C

enter

Facilities - A
rts (other than

m
useum

s)
1,413,000

8,125,000
0

0
0

0
9,538,000

8,125,000
Y

es

12618
2025

005
W

astew
ater C

ollection
W

ater - W
astew

ater
2,075,000

13,925,000
0

0
0

0
16,000,000

13,925,000
Y

es

24308
2025

006
E

quipm
ent Public W

orks
E

quipm
ent - O

ther
0

500,000
200,000

100,000
100,000

100,000
1,000,000

1,000,000
Y

es

33188
2025

007
M

unicipal Parking Facilities
Facilities - A

dm
inistrative Facilities

100,000
600,000

0
0

0
0

700,000
600,000

Y
es

30176
2025

008
Fire Pum

per T
ruck and E

quipm
ent

V
ehicles - Public Safety V

ehicle
225,000

600,000
0

0
0

0
825,000

600,000
N

o

15073
2025

009
R

esidential R
oads &

 D
rainage

T
ransportation -

H
ighw

ays/R
oads/B

ridges
0

10,225,000
0

0
0

0
10,225,000

10,225,000
Y

es

40326
2025

010
Fire E

quipm
ent

E
quipm

ent - Public Safety

E
quipm

ent
0

700,000
0

0
0

0
700,000

700,000
N

o

28297
2025

011
Storm

 and Flood H
azard M

itigation
W

ater - Storm
/Surface W

ater

C
ontrol

0
550,000

950,000
0

0
0

1,500,000
1,500,000

Y
es

39145
2025

012
C

orrales L
ibrary A

nnex
Facilities - L

ibraries
90,000

180,000
0

0
0

0
270,000

180,000
N

o

40332
2025

013
M

em
brane B

ioreactor
W

ater - W
astew

ater
50,000

5,950,000
0

0
0

0
6,000,000

5,950,000
N

o

39143
2025

014
E

lectric C
ar C

harging Stations
Facilities - O

ther
100,000

200,000
0

0
0

0
300,000

200,000
N

o

39139
2025

015
Fire Infotech U

pgrades
E

quipm
ent - Public Safety

0
150,000

0
0

0
0

150,000
150,000

N
o

21 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



M
onday, A

pril 1, 2024                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       C
orrales/IC

IP
 29002

Infrastructure C
apital Im

provem
ent P

lan F
Y

 2025-2029

E
quipm

ent

37096
2025

016
M

eadow
lark L

ane Im
provem

ents
T

ransportation -

B
ike/Pedestrian/E

questrian
243,500

600,000
0

0
0

0
843,500

600,000
Y

es

40329
2025

017
Fire training facilities

Facilities - Fire Facilities
0

500,000
0

0
0

0
500,000

500,000
N

o

30170
2025

018
Solar Installation for M

unicipal B
uildings

Facilities - A
dm

inistrative Facilities
0

50,000
0

0
0

0
50,000

50,000
N

o

26478
2025

019
C

orrales R
oad Pathw

ay M
ainstreet

T
ransportation -

B
ike/Pedestrian/E

questrian
10,000

500,000
1,000,000

0
0

0
1,510,000

1,500,000
Y

es

28294
2025

020
R

epair and U
pgrade M

unicipal B
ldgs

Facilities - A
dm

inistrative Facilities
240,000

875,000
500,000

0
0

0
1,615,000

1,375,000
Y

es

41459
2025

021
T

ransport C
apable R

escue/A
m

bulance
V

ehicles - Public Safety V
ehicle

0
300,000

0
0

0
0

300,000
300,000

N
o

40807
2025

022
C

om
m

ercial C
om

m
issary K

itchen
Facilities - O

ther
0

350,000
0

0
0

0
350,000

350,000
N

o

41472
2025

023
R

eplaster O
ld C

hurch Interior
Facilities - C

ultural Facilities
0

175,000
0

0
0

0
175,000

175,000
N

o

41465
2025

024
Squad Fire/E

M
S U

nit
Facilities - A

dm
inistrative Facilities

0
300,000

0
0

0
0

300,000
300,000

N
o

35415
2025

025
A

D
A

 T
ransition Plan for FH

W
A

Facilities - A
dm

inistrative Facilities
0

50,000
0

0
0

0
50,000

50,000
N

o

40328
2025

026
G

enerators for M
unicipal Facilities

Facilities - A
dm

inistrative Facilities
0

940,000
0

0
0

0
940,000

940,000
N

o

N
um

ber of projects:
26

F
unded to date:

Y
ear 1:

Y
ear 2:

Y
ear 3:

Y
ear 4:

Y
ear 5:

T
otal P

roject C
ost:

T
otal N

ot Y
et F

unded:

G
rand T

otals
8,207,500

49,075,500
3,050,000

470,000
100,000

100,000
61,003,000

52,795,500

22 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



W
h
a
t is a

n
 IC

IP
?

•
A

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 T
O

O
L
,  w

h
ich

 e
sta

b
lish

e
s 

p
rio

ritie
s fo

r a
n
ticip

a
te

d
 in

fra
stru

ctu
re

 p
ro

je
cts 

fo
r co

u
n
tie

s, m
u
n
icip

a
litie

s, trib
a
l g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
ts, 

sp
e
cia

l d
istricts a

n
d
 se

n
io

r ce
n
te

r fa
cilitie

s. 

•
C
o
v
e
rs a

 fiv
e
-ye

a
r fisca

l p
e
rio

d
 F

Y
2

0
2

6
-2

0
3

0

(Ju
ly 1

, 2
0

2
5

-Ju
n
e
 3

0
, 2

0
3

0
).

•
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, u

p
d
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 su

b
m

itte
d

 a
n
n
u
a
lly to

 L
G

D
. 

23 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



W
h
a
t is a

n
 IC

IP
?

•
A

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 T
O

O
L
,  w

h
ich

 e
sta

b
lish

e
s 

p
rio

ritie
s fo

r a
n
ticip

a
te

d
 in

fra
stru

ctu
re

 p
ro

je
cts 

fo
r co

u
n
tie

s, m
u
n
icip

a
litie

s, trib
a
l g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
ts, 

sp
e
cia

l d
istricts a

n
d
 se

n
io

r ce
n
te

r fa
cilitie

s. 

•
C
o
v
e
rs a

 fiv
e
-ye

a
r fisca

l p
e
rio

d
 F

Y
2

0
2

6
-2

0
3

0

(Ju
ly 1

, 2
0

2
5

-Ju
n
e
 3

0
, 2

0
3

0
).

•
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, u

p
d
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 su

b
m

itte
d

 a
n
n
u
a
lly to

 L
G

D
. 

A
n
 IC

IP
 is N

O
T
…

•
A

 w
ish

 list

•
F
u
n
d
in

g
 A

p
p
lica

tio
n

•
F
u
n
d
in

g
 S

o
u
rce

24 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



W
h

y is th
e IC

IP
 Im

p
o

rtan
t? 

•
T

h
e IC

IP
 is a to

o
l to

 sh
o

w
case

 yo
u

r en
tities p

rio
rity p

ro
jects. 

•
F

o
cu

s o
n

 critical n
eed

 p
ro

jects.
•

E
n

co
u

rag
e

s p
lan

n
in

g
.

•
P

articip
atio

n
 in

 th
e IC

IP
 is stro

n
g

ly
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

d
.

•
F

u
n

d
in

g
 ag

en
cies u

tilize
 th

e IC
IP

 in
 m

an
y w

ays.
•

T
h

e G
o

vern
o

r’s O
ffice

 u
se

s th
e IC

IP
 P

u
b

licatio
n

 w
h

en
 vettin

g
 

p
ro

jects.  

E
stab

lish
es 

P
rio

rities 

In
creases 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 
O

p
p

o
rtu

n
ities 

25 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



A
n

 IC
IP

 p
ro

ject sh
o

u
ld

…
 

•
C
re

a
te

 a
 n

e
w

 fixe
d
 a

sse
t o

r;

•
E
n
h
a
n
ce

 a
n
 e

xistin
g
 fixe

d
 

a
sse

t;

•
H

a
v
e
 a

 life
 e

xp
e
cta

n
cy o

f a
t 

le
a
st 1

0
 ye

a
rs.

•
B
e
 re

a
d
y to

 p
ro

ce
e
d
. N

o
t a

 

w
ish

 list. 

C
ity of R

io R
ancho R

oad P
roject 

26 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



IC
IP

 P
ro

jects sh
o

u
ld

 also
:

•
H

a
v
e
 g

o
o
d
 e

stim
a
te

s.

•
B
e
 o

v
e
r $

1
0
,0

0
0
. 

•
Id

e
n
tity fo

u
n
d
in

g
 S

o
u
rce

s. 

•
R
e
g
io

n
a
l p

ro
je

cts e
n
co

u
ra

g
e
d
.

Taos C
ounty Veteran’s C

em
etery 

27 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024



S
u

b
m

is
s

io
n

 d
e

a
d

lin
e

s

N
e
w

 d
e
a

d
lin

e
s fo

r th
is F

Y
2

0
2

6
-2

0
3

0
 IC

IP
: 

•
S

e
n

io
r C

itiz
e
n

 F
a

c
ilitie

s –
 W

e
d

n
e
sd

a
y, M

a
y

 1
5
, 2

0
2
4

•
S

p
e
c
ia

l D
istric

ts –
 F

rid
a

y, J
u

n
e
 1

4
, 2

0
2

4

•
T

rib
a

l G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

ts –
 F

rid
a

y, J
u

ly
 1

2
, 2

0
2

4

•
C

o
u

n
tie

s a
n

d
 M

u
n

ic
ip

a
litie

s –
 F

rid
a

y, J
u

ly
 1

2
, 2

0
2

4

•
F

in
a

l P
u

b
lic

a
tio

n
 –

 F
rid

a
y, S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 1

3
, 2

0
2

4

28 Agenda packet for April 9th, 2024


	April 9, 2024 Agenda.pdf
	consent agenda binder
	Consent agenda.pdf
	March 26, 2024 draft minutes.pdf
	Resolution 24-16 4th of July Parade.pdf
	VILLAGE OF CORRALES
	RESOLUTION NO. 24-16
	WHEREAS, the sponsors for the event will be Corrales MainStreet, Inc. and volunteer citizens and employees for the Village of Corrales; and
	WHEREAS, the parade will begin at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, July 4th, 2024 and
	PASSED, ADOPTED AND SIGNED this 9th day of April 2024.
	VILLAGE OF CORRALES
	(SEAL)


	new business binder
	New Business.pdf
	Resolution 24-17 Publish and Post for Ordinance 24-05 Compliance Ordinance
	WHEREAS, the Village Council of the Village of Corrales (the “Governing Body”) met upon notice of meeting duly published, in the Village Council Chambers (4324 Corrales Road, Corrales, NM 87048), on April 9th, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. as required by law; and
	NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL, THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE VILLAGE OF CORRALES, NEW MEXICO:

	VILLAGE OF CORRALES
	ORDINANCE NO. 24-05
	VILLAGE OF CORRALES, NEW MEXICO


	Draft Ordinance 24-03 Zone Map 5093 Corrales Rd
	DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 24-03

	Letter of Transmittal Section 18-164 (c) (2) (c)
	Draft ordinance_24-06 Terrains and Stormwater revision
	2025-2029 ICIP
	ICIP info for council
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 11
	Slide 12: An ICIP project should… 
	Slide 13: ICIP Projects should also:
	Slide 16


	Draft Ordinance 24-03 Zone Map 5093 Corrales Rd.pdf
	DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 24-03

	Ordinance 24-03 Zone Map 5093 Corrales Rd.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 24-03




